
Page 1 of 3

Notice of Meeting 

Adults and Lifelong Learning 
Select Committee
Date & time Place Contact Chief Executive 
Wednesday, 13 
February 2019 at 
10.30 am

Ashcombe, County 
Hall, Kingston upon 
Thames, KT1 2DN

Ross Pike
Room 122, County Hall
Tel 020 8541 7368

ross.pike@surreycc.gov.uk

Joanna Killian

If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in 
another format, eg large print or braille, or another language please 
either call 020 8541 9122, write to Democratic Services, Room 122, 
County Hall, Penrhyn Road, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1 
2DN, Minicom 020 8541 8914, fax 020 8541 9009, or email 
democratic.services@surreycc.gov.uk.

This meeting will be held in public.  If you would like to attend and you 
have any special requirements, please contact Ross Pike on 020 8541 
7368.

Elected Members
Mr Jeff Harris (Chairman), Mrs Bernie Muir (Vice-Chairman), Mr Bill Chapman, Mrs Angela 
Goodwin, Mr Ernest Mallett MBE, Mr David Mansfield, Dr Andrew Povey, Mr Mark Nuti, Mrs 

Rose Thorn and Mrs Marsha Moseley

TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Committee is responsible for the following areas:

 Adult Social Care (including safeguarding)  

 Adult Learning 

 Apprenticeships 

 Libraries, Arts and Heritage 

 Voluntary Sector 



Page 2 of 3

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

To report any apologies for absence and substitutions

2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 11 OCTOBER 2018

To agree the minutes of the previous meeting as a true and accurate 
record of proceedings.

(Pages 5 
- 14)

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the meeting or
as soon as possible thereafter:

i. any disclosable pecuniary interests and / or;

ii. other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in respect of any 
item(s) of business being considered at this meeting

NOTES:

 Members are reminded that they must not participate in any item 
where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest;

 as well as an interest of the Member, this includes any interest, of 
which the Member is aware, that relates to the Member’s spouse or 
civil partner (or any person with whom the Member is living as a 
spouse or civil partner); and

 Members with a significant personal interest may participate in the 
discussion and vote on that matter unless that interest could be 
reasonably regarded as prejudicial.

4 QUESTIONS & PETITIONS

To receive any questions or petitions

Notes:

1. The deadline for Member’s questions is 12.00pm four working days 
before the meeting (Thursday 7 February).

2. The deadline for public questions is seven days before the meeting 
(Wednesday 6 February).

3. The deadline for petitions was 14 days before the meeting, and no 
petitions have been received.

5 RESPONSE FROM THE CABINET TO ISSUES REFERRED BY THE 
SELECT COMMITTEE

6 ADULT SOCIAL CARE TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME (Pages 



Page 3 of 3

Purpose of the Report:

This report describes the Adult Social Care Transformation Programme, 
the expected changes and transformation of Adult Social Care in Surrey 
and the anticipated impact and challenges. 

15 - 42)

7 RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK 
PROGRAMME

The Select Committee is asked to review and approve the Forward Work 
Programme and Recommendations Tracker and provide comment as 
required.

(Pages 
43 - 58)

8 DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING

The next meeting of the Select Committee will be held on 5 June 2019 in 
the Ashcombe Suite at County Hall.

Joanna Killian
Chief Executive

Published: Wednesday, 6 February 2019

MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE

Those attending for the purpose of reporting on the meeting may use social media or mobile 
devices in silent mode to send electronic messages about the progress of the public parts of 
the meeting.  To support this, County Hall has wifi available for visitors – please ask at 
reception for details.

Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at council meetings with the 
Chairman’s consent.  Please liaise with the council officer listed in the agenda prior to the start 
of the meeting so that the Chairman can grant permission and those attending the meeting can 
be made aware of any filming taking place.  

Use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is subject to 
no interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to the PA or Induction Loop systems, 
or any general disturbance to proceedings. The Chairman may ask for mobile devices to be 
switched off in these circumstances.

It is requested that if you are not using your mobile device for any of the activities outlined 
above, it be switched off or placed in silent mode during the meeting to prevent interruptions 
and interference with PA and Induction Loop systems.

Thank you for your co-operation

FIELD_TITLE



This page is intentionally left blank



1

MINUTES of the meeting of the ADULTS AND LIFELONG LEARNING 
SELECT COMMITTEE held at 10.00 am on 11 October 2018 at Ashcombe 
Suite, County Hall, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1 2DN.

These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at its meeting on 
Wednesday, 13 February 2019.

Elected Members:

* Mrs Sinead Mooney (Chairman)
* Mrs Bernie Muir (Vice-Chairman)
* Mr Bill Chapman
* Mrs Angela Goodwin
 Mr Ernest Mallett MBE
* Mr David Mansfield
* Dr Andrew Povey
* Mr Mark Nuti
* Mrs Rose Thorn
* Mrs Marsha Moseley
 Mr Nick Darby

Substitute Members:

Mr Nick Darby
In attendance

Andrew Baird, Democratic Services Officer

Lien Cross, Consultant – Organisational Development, Surrey County Council

Mel Few, Cabinet Member for Adults

Joy Hurman, Lead Consultant – Learning and Development, Surrey County 
Council

Joanna Klimera, Lead Consultant – Service Partner Adult Social Care, Surrey 
County Council

Alison Lawson, Practice Development Manager, Surrey County Council

Mary Lewis, Cabinet Member for All Age Learning

Erica Lockhart, Chief Executive, Surrey Care Association

Alex Mackay, Workforce Strategy and Business Support Manager, Surrey 
County Council

Nick Markwick, Surrey Coalition of Disabled People

Luis Moore, Apprentice (Recruitment Team), Surrey County Council

Sonya Sellar, Area Director – Adult Social Care, Surrey County Council

Page 5

Item 2



2

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  [Item 1]

Apologies were received from Mr Ernest Mallett.

Mr Nick Darby acted as a substitute for Mr Ernest Mallett.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  [Item 2]

There were none.

3 QUESTIONS & PETITIONS  [Item 3]

There were none.

4 RESPONSE FROM THE CABINET TO ISSUES REFERRED BY THE 
SELECT COMMITTEE  [Item 4]

There were none.

5 SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL APPRENTICESHIP STRATEGY  [Item 5]

Declarations of Interests:

None

Witnesses:

Lien Cross, Consultant – Organisational Development, Surrey County Council

Joy Hurman, Lead Consultant – Learning and Development, Surrey County 
Council

Mary Lewis, Cabinet Member for All Age Learning

Luis Moore, Apprentice (Recruitment Team), Surrey County Council

Key points raised during the discussion:

1. An introduction to the report was provided by officers who highlighted 
that apprenticeships would support Surrey County Council (the 
Council) to develop and retain a skilled and flexible workforce capable 
of responding to future changes in local authority service delivery. 
Apprenticeships also created opportunities for staff by providing a 
framework for the whole workforce to undertake relevant qualifications 
helping to raise knowledge and aspirations. Members were informed 
about the “Vision for Apprenticeships 2020” which outlined the UK 
Government’s aspirations to increase apprenticeships nationally 
through a 0.5% levy on all employers in the UK with an annual pay bill 
in excess of £3 million. As part of the Apprenticeship Reforms, the 
Council is required to pay £2,040,000 annually into the Levy and has a 

Page 6



3

target to employ over 600 apprentices per year across the Council and 
local authority maintained schools. The Committee was reminded that 
information contained within the report was orientated specifically 
towards the Council’s internal apprenticeship recruitment. 

Rose Thorn arrived at the meeting at 10:10am

2. The Committee heard that factors such as the recruitment freeze as 
well as the Council’s Transformation Programme had impacted on the 
ability of services to recruit apprentices and that this would continue to 
cause challenges over the coming months. Members were informed, 
however, that it was important to ensure the right structures were in 
place to support recruitment and retention of apprentices by ensuring 
effective linkages between services within the Council and improving 
collaboration with external partners. An Apprenticeships Task Force 
had been convened to establish the structures required to ensure that 
the Council was in a position to recruit and retain apprenticeships once 
there was greater stability across services. 

3. The Committee asked how the Council would measure success in 
delivering against its Apprenticeship Strategy. Officers highlighted that 
recouping the money committed to the Levy and delivering against the 
Council’s Public Sector Target for annual apprenticeship starts would 
collectively provide a good barometer of success in delivery against 
the Council’s Apprenticeships Strategy. Members heard that it was 
also important to ensure the Council was able to keep apprentices 
once they had completed their training to ensure that the skills and 
knowledge they had developed were retained in-house. The Council 
was in the process of gathering evidence to understand what made a 
good apprenticeship to inform is own training offer.

4. Clarity was sought by the Committee on the number of apprentices 
that were employed by the Council. Members were advised that the 
Council employed 371 apprentices who were each at different stages 
of their training. Members heard that funding drawn-down from the 
Levy could only be spent on training costs and not on salaries pre-
apprenticeship programmes. 

5. Members asked whether there was potential to collaborate with 
partner organisations through the Levy to establish apprenticeships. 
Officers indicated that 10% of the Council’s Levy funding has been 
made available to partner organisations for the 2018/19 financial year 
and that this would be increased to 25% from next year. None of the 
funding which had been made available to partner organisations had 
been used, however, due to the fact that many were already struggling 
to spend their own allocation. Officers did, however, highlight a 
rotational apprenticeship pilot that the Council was undertaking with 
Virgin Care which had provided a blueprint for how the Council could 
work with other organisations to deliver training for apprentices. 

6. Discussions turned to poor perceptions of apprenticeships and how 
attitudes could be changed to improve uptake of apprenticeship 
training qualifications. Officers stated that attitudes had begun to 
change regarding apprenticeships fuelled in part by the debt 

Page 7



4

associated with completing a degree and the fact that apprentices 
earned a salary during their training. Despite this there was still 
pressure to go to university which was a better known and more 
established route for young people to enter the labour market. Better 
advertising was required to build awareness of what apprenticeships 
could offer and create parity of esteem with university degrees. 

7. The Committee asked about the role of Ofsted in promoting and 
encouraging apprentices as a career path for school leavers. Members 
were advised that the measures used by Ofsted to judge success 
acted as a disincentive for teachers to promote apprenticeships to 
students as Ofsted took into account the number of pupils that 
attended university when forming a judgement. 

8. Further information was sought on how the Council ensured that its 
apprentices received high quality training from providers. Members 
heard that providers had to be evaluated by the Institute of 
Apprentices before they could offer qualifications funded through the 
Levy. The Council also had its own quality assurance processes in 
place which included quarterly review meetings with all of its training 
providers as well as mechanisms for both apprentices and providers to 
report problems to the Learning and Development Team for resolution. 

9. Members asked whether there was an opportunity for the Council to 
offer apprenticeships for people living with learning disabilities. 
Officers stated that new criteria introduced by the Government which 
required all those who had their apprenticeship training funded through 
the Levy to have certain pre-existing English and Maths qualifications 
had put people with learning disabilities at a disadvantage but that 
extensive lobbying was taking place by a number of groups to rescind 
these requirements. 

10. The Committee highlighted that there appeared to be a particular 
problem in recruiting and retaining staff within schools and asked 
whether the Levy could be an opportunity to address these challenges. 
Members were advised that schools had had challenges in engaging 
with the Apprenticeship Levy due to a lack of apprenticeship standards 
that were relevant to schools. This was a national problem which had 
been recognised by organisations such as the Local Government 
Association (LGA) who had highlighted the need for relevant 
apprenticeship standards to be introduced for schools. 

11. Attention was drawn to references within the report which highlighted 
variation across services and directorates to the recruitment and 
training of apprentices. The Committee sought clarity on how the 
Council would seek to promote apprenticeships among managers and 
empower them to commit the time required to train apprentices. 
Members were informed that the attitude of managers was vital to the 
recruitment of apprentices. To this end the Learning and Development 
Team would shortly embark on an apprenticeship roadshow which 
aimed to highlight the benefit of apprentices and demonstrate how to 
conduct good training. The Committee also heard that there were 

Page 8



5

models of good practice within the Council such as in the Library 
Service as well as in the Surrey Adult Learning Team.

12. Members asked whether the Council had sought to identify and 
implement best practice from other local authorities. Officers 
highlighted that the Council went out to procurement jointly for training 
providers with Brighton and Hove City Council, East Sussex County 
Council and West Sussex County Council which had provided insights 
into how apprenticeship training is provided at other local authorities. 
Officers had also reviewed Hampshire County Council’s 
apprenticeship training separately to identify and take forward best 
practise.

13. Members sought clarity on how the Apprenticeship Task Force would 
actually address the key challenges confronted by the Council in 
recruiting and retaining apprentices. Officers stated that the Task 
Force would produce an Action Plan that would be submitted for 
consideration by the Adults and Lifelong Learning Select Committee at 
its meeting on 13 February 2019.  

RESOLVED: 

That the Adults and Lifelong Learning Select Committee:

i. welcomes the formation of an Apprenticeship Task Force and 
recommends that it produces an action plan which outlines specific 
steps that the Council will take to improve retention of qualified 
apprentices, enhance the perception of apprenticeships among 
residents and partners and embed higher apprenticeship Level 
standards across the Council (Recommendation: R1/18);

ii. requests that the Task Force submits its action plan to the Committee 
for consideration at its meeting on 13 February 2019 including an 
update on those specific areas identified in recommendation I 
(Recommendation: R2/18);

iii. supports the decision to exclude apprenticeship positions from the 
recruitment freeze currently in place at Surrey County Council; and 
recommends that the Cabinet Member writes to the Minister of State 
for School Standards to encourage Ofsted to include apprenticeships 
within their measures of success for assessing school performance 
(Recommendation: R3/18).

6 ADULT SOCIAL CARE STRATEGIC PRIORITIES: WORKFORCE  [Item 6]

Declarations of Interest:

None

Witnesses:

Mel Few, Cabinet Member for Adults

Page 9



6

Joanna Klimera, Lead Consultant – Service Partner Adult Social Care, Surrey 
County Council

Alison Lawson, Practice Development Manager, Surrey County Council

Erica Lockhart, Chief Executive, Surrey Care Association

Alex Mackay, Workforce Strategy and Business Support Manager, Surrey 
County Council

Nick Markwick, Director, Surrey Coalition of Disabled People

Sonya Sellar, Area Director – Adult Social Care, Surrey County Council

Key points raised during the discussion:

1. The report was introduced by witnesses who advised the Committee 
that recruitment and retention of adult social care staff was a national, 
regional and Surrey challenge. Across the country, poor image of 
social care and a perceived lack of prestige resulted in people not 
being attracted into a career in social care. The NHS had a more 
positive profile among the public and were perceived as offeing staff 
clearer career pathways. Those considering a career in care were 
therefore more likely to apply for positions within the NHS. Members 
heard that recruitment and retention of staff was one of the most 
significant challenges in the care sector in Surrey and that the Council 
had introduced a number of initiatives to address this challenge 
including working with colleagues in the NHS and Health Education 
Kent, Surrey and Sussex (HEKSS). The Council was working with 
Surrey’s independent care provider sector through a program of work 
that aimed to support quality, competency and capacity across the 
workforce. Within this program of work Surrey Care Association led on 
a Surrey-wide recruitment and retention initiative. Members also 
received an update on recruitment and retention challenges across the 
independent care sector in Surrey. The availability of affordable 
housing, perceptions of care workers as low skilled and a lack of 
career progression opportunities were also harming the capacity of 
independent care providers to recruit and retain staff.

2. Attention was drawn to the significant number of social care staff 
working in Surrey who were from the European Economic Area (EEA) 
particularly within the Independent Care Sector and clarity was sought 
by the Committee on the impact that the UK leaving the EU would 
have on the ability of providers to recruit and retain staff. Members 
heard that the independent care sector in Surrey had serious concerns 
about the impact that it will have, particularly those that employ large 
number of staff who are from the European Union (EU). The 
Committee was informed that there was a shortage of local people 
with the skills or inclination to become care workers which created 
problems for the entirety of the sector in Surrey. Concern was 
expressed that the incorrect perception of care workers as being low-
skilled meant that national organisations had failed to grasp the 
potential impact that Brexit could have on the capacity of providers to 
recruit and retain social care staff. 

Page 10



7

3. Members expressed concern that 36% of posts within the Council’s 
Reablement service were vacant and requested clarity on how many 
people it would be necessary to recruit to have a fully staffed 
Reablement service The Committee heard that employees within the 
Reablement service were not recruited to a 36 hour a week contract 
due to the need to have flexibility. Staff within the service were, 
however, encouraged to join the internal bank so that additional 
reablement assistants could be brought in during busy periods. 
Members were further informed that in order to help with additional 
winter pressures last year, local systems funded additional home care 
and reablement capacity which helped to manage demand. Officers 
also highlighted that additional capacity had been created through the 
introduction of the new integrated rehabilitation positions. 

4. Pay was identified as a major challenge for recruiting and retaining 
staff within the social care sector and Members asked whether any 
work had been done to assess recruitment costs against increasing 
salaries for those positions where it was difficult to recruit and retain 
staff. Officers stated that they had not done this work but that it might 
be a useful exercise for the Council to do.

5. Discussions took place regarding the need to improve public 
perceptions of the carer role to attract more people into the sector. 
Members suggested that there should be a national strategy to 
improve recruitment and retention within social care which drew on 
best practise from other countries to improve public perceptions of 
working within the sector. Members were advised that organisations 
such as the Local Government Association (LGA) and the Association 
of Directors of Adult Social Services (ADASS) had taken the initiative 
to create national strategies aimed at improving recruitment and 
retention which the Council was actively contributing to. ADASS had 
signalled its intention to make the social care workforce one of its top 
priorities 

6. Officers highlighted the need to attract and recruit more young people 
into the care sector by encouraging schools to promote social care as 
a career for school leavers, changing parents’ perceptions of care 
worker roles and more effective use of social media. 

7. Attention was drawn to the impact of recruitment and retention 
challenges on those in receipt of social care support. This was 
particularly bad for those who received domiciliary care where high 
staff turnover meant that users often did not know the person that they 
were receiving social care from, while vacancies contributed staff to 
arrive late for appointments. The Committee heard that offering a 
competitive salary was fundamental to the capacity of social care 
providers to recruit and retain staff and that it was only by ensuring 
that people felt that they were paid fairly for the job that they were 
doing that the workforce challenges confronting the social care sector 
would be resolved. Increasing the availability of affordable housing 
within Surrey would also attract more people into the sector.

8. Discussions took place regarding the impact on carers of looking after 
a someone with a long term degenerative illness such as Dementia. 
Witnesses stated that both the Council and the Independent Care 

Page 11



8

Sector offered dedicated training to staff on how to care for someone 
with Dementia. Voluntary sector organisations were also contracted by 
the Council to provide resources and support networks for those 
looking after a loved one with Dementia.

9. The Committee heard about the Chance for Care initiative, a scheme 
which had been developed by the Council to support under-
represented groups into employment within the care sector. The 
scheme involved working with organisations such as Employability, 
Surrey Choices, the Richmond Fellowship as well as care providers to 
create pre-employment programmes that would support people from 
all walks of life to become care workers. Members were informed that 
the aim was to have two pre-employment programmes of up to 30 
participants each completed by the end of March 2019 with two further 
pre-employment programmes to be delivered by December 2019 and 
that the Council was targeting 70% of participants gaining employment 
within the care sector following the conclusion of the programme in 
March 2020. 

RESOLVED: 

That the Adults and Lifelong Learning Select Committee:

i. recognises and acknowledges the work being undertaken in the 
Service and with external partners such as HEKSS, Surrey Care 
Association, Skills for Care and the NHS that aims to address key 
challenges in the social care workforce across Surrey. The Committee 
also recommends that the Council creates an action plan for improving 
recruitment of young people into the adult social care workforce by 
challenging poor perceptions of care work among young people and 
their parents, increasing opportunities for work experience and using 
social media more effectively as a recruitment tool (Recommendation 
R4/18);

ii. recommends that the Health and Wellbeing Board reviews 
opportunities to establish clear career pathways between frontline care 
roles within the Council, NHS England and partner organisations as a 
matter of urgency and submits the outcomes of this review to the 
Select Committee ahead of its meeting on 13 February 2019 
(Recommendation: R5/18);

iii. recommends that the Council prioritises investigating the potential of 
technology to support the workforce, improve productivity and promote 
residents to remain independent (Recommendation R6/18); 

iv. recommends that the Council undertakes an exercise to consider the 
cost of recruitment against raising staff salaries (Recommendation 
R7/18);

v. notes the work underway in the Service and in partnership with Surrey 
Care Association that aims to address the Council’s key challenges in 
the Adult Social Care independent care provider sector in Surrey; and

Page 12



9

vi. supports and endorses the work underway within Surrey, regionally 
and with other partners that aims to attract people into the sector and 
improve the image of social care sector in general.

7 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  [Item 7]

Declarations of interest:

None

Witnesses:

Andrew Baird, Democratic Services Officer

Key points raised during the discussions:

1. Members enquired about what opportunities the Select Committee 
would be given to scrutinise relevant aspects of the Council’s 
Transformation Programme. Officers advised that scrutiny of the 
business cases that underpinned the Transformation Programme was 
held by the Corporate Overview Select Committee but that 
responsibility for scrutinising the Programme had been delegated to 
individual Select Committees. Specific approaches to how scrutiny of 
the Transformation Programme would be conducted was still being 
worked out by officers but Members were advised that they would be 
given more detail on this was forthcoming.

2. The conversation turned to an item that had previously been 
considered by the Adults and Health Select Committee regarding the 
amount of Adult Social Care debt that was owed to the Council. 
Officers stated that the Council’s approach to recouping Adult Social 
Care debt had been considered by select committees on numerous 
occasions in the past but that little tangible benefit had been derived 
from this scrutiny. Given the need for the Select Committee to 
prioritise the areas that it scrutinise the Committee was asked to 
consider carefully whether Adult Social Care debt should be included 
on its Forward Work Programme. Members responded by highlighting 
that the Council was owed over £16 million in unpaid care fees which 
was significant given the financial challenges confronting the Council 
and it was agreed that an item on Adult Social Care debt would be 
included on the Committee’s Forward Work Programme for its meeting 
on 13 February 2019. 

3. Members enquired as to whether the Committee would be given the 
opportunity to scrutinise the budgets of the services within its remit. 
Officers stated that responsibility for scrutinising budgets remained the 
responsibility of the Corporate Overview Select Committee and that it 
was not known whether any aspect of budget scrutiny would be 
delegated down to individual Select Committees.

Actions/ further information to be provided:

Page 13



10

1. An item on Adult Social Care debt to be added to the Adults and 
Lifelong Learning Select Committee Forward Work Programme for its 
meeting on 13 February 2019. 

RESOLVED: 

That the Adults and Lifelong Select Committee reviewed items that it is due to 
consider at future meetings.

8 DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING  [Item 8]

Members noted that the next meeting of the Adults and Lifelong Learning 
Select Committee would take place on 13 February 2019.

Meeting ended at: 12.50 pm
______________________________________________________________

Chairman

Page 14



Adults and Lifelong Learning Select Committee
13 February 2019
Adult Social Care Transformation Programme

Purpose of report: 

This report describes the Adult Social Care Transformation Programme, the expected 
changes and transformation of Adult Social Care in Surrey and the anticipated impact 
and challenges. 

Background

Overview 

1. The delivery of Adult Social Care in Surrey, and elsewhere across the country, is 
framed by the requirements set out in the Care Act (2014). The Care Act places 
statutory duties on Surrey County Council (the Council) to promote 
independence and wellbeing; prevent, reduce and delay a person’s requirement 
for care and support. The Care Act also clearly sets out who should be eligible 
for a Care Act assessment and subsequent care and support. The Council’s 
approach to transforming Adult Social Care, delivering better outcomes for 
residents and consequently delivering the medium term financial strategy is to 
fully realise the benefits and opportunities arising from this legislation.

2. The Care Act regulations state ‘at every intervention with a person, a local 
authority should consider whether or how a person’s needs could be reduced or 
other needs could be delayed from arising. Effective interventions at the right 
time can stop needs from escalating and help people maintain their 
independence for longer.’ The strategic vision and objectives for Adult Social 
Care are designed to deliver these requirements and to improve the wellbeing of 
all residents.

3. At present, the Council is supporting 20,288 people with care and support needs.  
11,746 of these are older people being supported in care homes or in their own 
homes (3,009 Residential/Nursing Homes, 3,427 Homebased Care, 5,310 in the 
Community – includes carers) and 8,542 are younger adults living in supported 
housing or being helped to live independently in their own homes (1,109 
Residential/Nursing, 1,301 in Housing with support, 934 Homebased Care and 
5,198 in the community – includes carers) 

Page 15

Item 6



Adult Social Care Vision

Vision

4. The Council’s vision is that, irrespective of age, people are able to live safely 
and independently for as long as possible.  If this vision is realised, not only 
will it improve the quality of life for the most vulnerable residents, but it should 
also deliver services within the resources available to the Council.

5. Put briefly it is necessary to view spending on individuals and their families as 
an investment which maximises the ability of individuals with Care Act eligible 
needs to lead independent, productive lives to the greatest extent possible; 
the Council’s and service users’ expectations need to be high.

6. This means a different model of service for all the Council’s client groups; a 
different “care journey”, with the following ingredients:

a) A strength based/asset based approach
Early contacts and interventions need to be maximising individuals’ 
ability to solve problems for themselves with the help of family and 
community resources. This is vital to promote independence and 
discourage dependency. It is necessary to maximise the accessibility of 
all public services to clients; this includes access to health and housing, 
and employment. 

b) A reluctance to assess for long term needs when someone is in 
crisis
The Council should assess people when they are at their best, not at 
their worst. But it is often when people are at their worst or in a crisis that 
they encounter social service. People can be ill in hospital, for instance, 
or have a breakdown in informal care, or bereavement. Younger adults 
can have an admission under the Mental Health Act, or face the 
prospect of elderly parents being no longer able to care for them. It is 
necessary to make sure that, for example, in hospital elderly people are 
discharged back home in nearly all cases rather than ending up facing a 
lifetime in residential care. A lifetime that can be all too short in some 
cases.

c) Short term interventions to recover independence
To assist this the Council must be prepared to offer timely help to get 
people back on their feet before their long term needs are assessed.  
This is called various things depending on the client group or the 
therapies delivering the intervention but it includes reablement, 
rehabilitation, and recovery.

Page 16



d) Assessments for outcomes
If spending is thought of as an investment to promote independence 
then it is legitimate to think that some people’s care needs will reduce 
over time. Providers of care must be asked to have this in their mind all 
the time. Reviews are a very important part of this process; they are how 
providers are held to account to achieve improvements sought by the 
Council.

e) Commissioning and Market interventions
The Council must be more assertive in the market to ensure that care 
can be purchased at an affordable price.  The Council must consider 
managing services itself or through trading company Surrey Choices.

Surrey is not in the same position as other Councils; a large majority of 
people can afford to purchase their own care. This has positives and 
negatives in terms of the price paid for care.  

Like most places Surrey has a sometimes fragile market for care, 
especially home based care. This means the Council must pay a price 
that is sustainable whatever the budget position. Two “costs of care” 
exercises for older people and people with learning disabilities have 
been undertaken and it is believed that the Council is paying a fair price 
for care at the moment.

f) An “anti-institutional bias”
Surrey has more people in residential and nursing care than national 
averages and are a huge outlier in terms of people with learning 
disabilities in residential and nursing care, only partly because of the 
legacy of old NHS long stay institutions.  

If the Council is serious about promoting independence it must have the 
ambition that as many younger adults as possible move out of 
institutional care and into “ordinary living”.  

Making a Start

7. The Council originally set a cash envelope for Adult Social Care in 2018/19 of 
£382m. This included a savings target of £18.3m. In the summer the service 
was then asked to find a further £10.7m of savings to contribute towards the 
Council’s target to deliver £40m of additional in-year savings in 2018/19. As at 
the end of December 2018, Adult Social Care is forecasting to over-achieve 
the additional in-year target set by £7m, resulting in £36m of savings in total 

Page 17



now forecast to be delivered in 2018/19, mitigating some of the risks for the 
2019/20 budget.

8. As with all budgets of this kind, there is an arithmetical logic to this. The large 
majority of spend, 90% in fact, is client related. To achieve the savings in 
2019/20 it is essential that client spend falls in 2018/19 to a level where the 
full year effect of current spend, plus unavoidable growth in demand numbers 
or costs is within the cash envelope. Given it is now the fourth quarter, the 
Council is aiming to achieve as close to an underspend of £20m this year to 
ensure some flexibility for any potential future pressures, such as an increase 
in demand (excluding one-off savings of various kinds) and this is the 
ambition.  

9. There are three main drivers in delivering the underspend:

a) Reducing numbers in the system – by effectively managing demand; 
maximising independence by providing appropriate access to universal 
and short term interventions, such as reablement, preventing; reducing 
and delaying the need for longer term care and support.

b) Changing the pattern of care – by providing the most appropriate type of 
care to meet needs, promoting independence by offering home based 
care rather than residential care.

c) Reducing the cost of care – by ensuring the provision of care is outcome 
focused and still appropriate to the needs of people who use services 
whilst carrying out timely reviews and the provision of the most suitable 
accommodation at an affordable price through market management.

All of these approaches are being used, and all transformation programmes will 
impact on these drivers.

Adult Social Care Transformation Programme

Delivering the Change

The collective programme of change throughout 2019/20 and 2020/21 will build upon 
the work of 2018/19 to deliver transformation in Adult Social Care in Surrey and is 
shaped into the following transformation programmes. The Social Care Institute for 
Excellence (SCIE) are working with Adult Social Care as an improvement partner.

Practice Improvement

This programme will strengthen and enhance preventative services, change the 
conversation to focus on family and community resilience, develop an enhanced 
offer for recovery and reablement (including extending our telecare offer) and, for 

Page 18



those who after an assessment require care and support, to effectively manage and 
consistently review their care and support needs.

a) The conversation at the front door will focus on outcomes that draw on 
the person’s strengths and assets to achieve the lives they want for 
themselves, also ensuring access to information and advice to help them 
look after their health and well-being and to avoid, or delay, the need for 
social care. Reablement is key to maintaining or increasing 
independence.

b) Resources will be targeted; practice and process improvement will result 
in a more efficient flow of work, better decision making and outcomes - 
reducing the dependence on services where appropriate. 

c) The workforce will be mobile, teams are currently trialling tablets that will 
enable them to complete assessments with the person present and 
reduce desk time needed to write up work.

d) Case holding will reduce, moving to a task based ‘see and solve 
approach’. People will be encouraged to self-serve wherever possible.

e) Statutory support will be provided via pre-paid card direct payments as 
the default option, reducing dependency on homebased care services.

f) As part of this programme, in line with the service review of Learning 
Disabilities, Adult Social Care is working to set up a specialist learning 
disability and autism team. The team will work to increase the number of 
people with a learning disability and autism living independently in their 
own homes with access to employment, friendship groups or other 
worthwhile pastimes.

g) The rollout of this programme began last year, Adult Social Care are 
currently working with the last four locality teams before they begin the 
rollout to the specialist teams in May 2019 i.e. Mental Health, Learning 
Disabilities and Transition teams. SCIE will be working closely with the 
Council to ensure that the strength based approach is truly embedded 
within teams.

h) This programme is aligned to the Adult Social Care vision is provide a 
strength based/asset based approach and deliver short term 
interventions to recover independence and prevent, reduce and delay 
the need for long term care.

All Age Disability (Transitions)

a) The Council is developing an all age learning disability approach starting 
with services for young people aged14-25 years and linking to the 
specialist Learning Disability Team based in Adults Social Care.

b) The Council will improve local commissioning solutions by, for example, 
introducing a ‘Local Offer Plus’.

c) Residents will be involved in the development of local solutions and 
feedback will be collected from them regularly through a new resident 
focused performance dashboard.

Page 19



d) The Council will offer support to other areas of the business to deliver 
their outcomes and priorities, for example, within SEND post-16 work, 
embedding the family resilience model, and supporting the new 
approach for strategic commissioning.

e) As part of this work, eight practitioners will join the Transition Team to 
focus on the preparation for adulthood for 14 to 18 year olds, this will 
include workers with mental health expertise in order to bridge the gap 
between Children’s and Adult services.

Health and Social Care Integration

This programme will deliver of a holistic range of services. This will include new 
models of care that enable the Surrey population to access the right health and care 
at the right time in the right place and the adoption of a more active preventative 
approach.

a) The work of the programme will align to the integration agenda; to 
develop a financially sustainable health and social care system that 
delivers improved outcomes for residents through the delivery of holistic 
services

b) New models of care across health and social care teams will enable 
access to the right health and care, at the right time, in the right place

c) Collaborative working will help prevent admission to hospital and support 
hospital discharge

d) A move to a more preventative approach will help people live healthy, 
active lives, live independently and delay the need for care and support

e) There are currently a number of joint initiatives that have been 
developed or are in development with health colleagues across the 
County. Many of these are now considered business as usual, Epsom 
Health and Care, for example, which is an integrated service that 
supports individuals to remain independent in the community. By 
working together to make the best use of rapid response and reablement 
they help individuals reach their potential and remain independent.

f) The Council is developing discharge to assess models with health 
partners to ensure that people are at their best using a strength based 
approach and ensuring timely discharge from hospital.  Annex 2 is a 
schematic of this process at Epsom General Hospital.

Accommodation with Care and Support

This programme will shape the accommodation with care and support market for 
older people and those with a learning disability. This will be achieved through the 
development of a commissioning strategy which includes a number of options to 
deliver the following priorities. For older people this will mean, for example, an 
increase provision of extra care accommodation, a residential care provision that 

Page 20



provides a home for life for people with complex needs with a shift away from 
offering traditional residential care for people with mild to moderate needs. For 
people with learning disabilities, for example, to develop more settled 
accommodation options for people to live independently with an individual care and 
support package based on their needs and preferences, developing local 
accommodation options with a wide range of support services.

a) An enhanced range and capacity of options of accommodation with care, 
will be established in line with need and support will be provided to 
enable adults to live and age well.

b) People will enter nursing care at a later stage in life.
c) Surrey will have an additional 2,000 extra care units, 724 affordable, 

bringing the ratio of flats to population in line with the national 
benchmark. Benefits in diverting people away from residential care and 
ensuring a better home from hospital process.

d) A residential and nursing commissioning strategy will be developed to 
ensure appropriate provision to meet demand, including in specialist 
areas.

e) Learning disability provision will promote a shift from residential care to 
supported living options with an ambition over the next five years to 
halve the numbers of adults with a learning disability living in registered 
care homes.

Adult Social Care Market Management

In the short term, the programme focus on mitigating increases to prices of care 
packages, reduce the price of care packages that are outside of benchmarks and 
develop a separate pathway for full cost cases. To create longer lasting 
transformation the Adult Social Care commissioning strategy will be strengthened 
and capacity built by re-modelling the commissioning workforce. 

1. The Council will build commissioning capacity and create a vision the 
market understands and agrees with, it will enhance commissioning 
capability, improving our ability to influence price and quality in the 
market.

2. The commissioning approach will be developed to complement Health 
and other major buyers in the market.

3. Conversations with providers will involve appropriate commercial and 
contract management expertise as well as social workers.

4. Better utilisation of Council resources and collaboration across areas of 
expertise.

Page 21



Impact of Expected Changes

Impact on People Who Use Services  

11. Many of these changes will be positive. Promoting independence will enable 
people to live better lives through reablement, rehabilitation and recovery, 
however, users may be potentially be impacted in respect of choice for long 
term residential and nursing placements. The Council will meet its statutory 
obligations, however, we may confine the offer of residential and nursing 
places to those that are reasonable and affordable for the Council. In some 
parts of the Council this may mean that families may not get the care home or 
location of their choice.  

Impact on Providers

12. Again much of this will be positive as the Council seeks to build longer term 
relationships with providers where previously it has been reliant on spot 
purchasing. However, buying to a price will mean some parts of the market will 
not take business from the Council or will only do so for a short period (when 
they have a void or when they are newly opened for example). As business 
models can often be difficult to change rapidly, there may be a need to step 
into the market to build as well as buy. In the short to medium term it may be 
necessary to review previous messages signalled to the market about how 
much the Council is prepared to pay for care and support.

Impact on Partners within the Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector

13. The changes align to national agendas in promoting and maximising 
independence, providing more efficient services, integration, implementing 
new models of services with partners such as Health, preventing the use of 
high cost, often inappropriate services and managing within the reducing 
financial envelope. It also provides the opportunity to further develop 
relationship with the Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector to provide the 
most appropriate offer to meet the needs of the people who use services as 
well as carers.

Impact on health partners

14. The Council will continue to work with NHS colleagues through existing 
forums to ensure they are aware and consulted on the transformation 
programmes. At a local level these are the Local A&E Delivery Boards and 
the Local Joint Commissioning Groups. At a strategic level the Director is 
the Co-chair of the Surrey Strategic Health and Care Commissioning 
Collaborative and is a member of the following:

 Surrey Health and Wellbeing Board

Page 22



 Surrey Heartlands System Oversight and Assurance Group

 Potential future member of the Surrey Heartlands Committee-in-
Common

Adult Social Care Financial Position

Financial Position

15. A significant turnaround in spend is required to make Adult Social Care 
financially sustainable for the Council (see Annex 1, slide 2).

16. Through early changes to practice and ways of working, Adult Social Care is 
performing well in 2018/19 and is projected to significantly overachieve the 
£10.7m additional in-year savings target set for this year (see Annex 1, slide 
3)

17. 90% of the budget is spent on supporting people and their carers’.  The 
majority of care packages are currently commissioned on a “spot” basis. This 
accounts for 75% of gross Adult Social Care expenditure, see Annex 1, slide 
4. “Spot” care packages are commissioned individually based on people’s 
assessed care needs or direct payments are given to people to manage their 
own care provision. This is the key area of the budget impacted by demand 
and price changes and so must be the focus for delivering the savings 
required to bring spending within available resources. Spending on “spot” care 
packages has been reducing (see Annex 1, slide 5) meaning that the 2018/19 
revised budget is now on track to be delivered on an ongoing basis. This has 
been driven by a reduction in the numbers of people receiving funded care 
and reduced costs of care compared to the previous increasing trajectory (see 
Annex 1, slides 6 – 9 for changes in the four biggest areas of care 
expenditure).

18. The 2019/20 budget set out in the Council’s budget papers published in 
January includes the following key changes from the revised 2018/19 budget1:

 Budgeted pressures of £15m for demand2, price inflation, Service Delivery 
changes and pay inflation.

 A net increase to specific Adult Social Care government grant funding of 
£1m. This is made up of £3m of reductions to current funding streams 
offset by £4m of new Winter Pressures funding that the government 
included in the Local Government Finance Settlement.

 A reduction in Adult Social Care’s cash envelope of £6m.

1 The 2018/19 revised budget includes the £10.7m of additional in-year savings allocated to Adult Social Care.
2 Allowance has only been made for people transitioning from Children’s, Families and Learning services – no 
allowance has been made for any other care groups including Older People

Page 23



18.These three factors mean that £20m of savings need to be delivered in 
2019/20 in order to balance to Adult Social Care’s cash envelope of £365m.  
Annex 1, slide 10 sets out the 2019/20 budget construction. Annex 1, slide 
11 lists the savings planned for 2019/203.

19.£17.8m (87%) of the £20m of savings required in 2019/20 rely on successful 
implementation of Adult Social Care transformation programmes. The 
Practice Improvement Programme will have the most direct impact in the 
short term on reducing care expenditure by implementing an enhanced 
strength based approach to responding to people’s care needs and 
effectively manage demand. Therefore, £16.5m of the transformational 
savings are planned to be delivered through Practice Improvement. The 
remaining £1.3m of transformational savings are planned to be delivered 
across the cohort of people who have transitioned from Children’s, Families 
and Learning services in recent years through the measures being taken 
forwards in the All Age Learning Disabilities programme, phase 1 of which is 
focusing on the transition pathway. The remaining programmes are enablers 
to the savings and will help to constrain pressures within budgeted limits.  
The Market Management programme has a key role in managing price 
inflation within the £5m budgeted for 2019/20. The transformation 
programmes are also essential to ensuring the long term sustainability of the 
service, for instance in developing sufficient new alternative community care 
provision to replace more traditional forms of institutional care.

20.Early signs are positive but there is still much work to do. Based on the 
progress made to date, £5m of the £20m of savings required for 2019/20 
were rated as green (achieved or clearly on track) in the budget papers.  
That would still leave at least £15m of savings to be delivered, assuming of 
course pressures are incurred as budgeted (the savings required could 
increase or decrease depending on the pressures actually incurred).

21.All efforts are being made to continue to deliver savings in the remainder of 
2018/19 to help deliver next year’s budget. Although these actions will have 
a relatively small impact on the current year position, the full year impact on 
next year’s budget will be much more significant. For instance, full year spot 
care package commitments reduced by over £1m due to actions taken in 
December 2018. This reduces the £15m remaining savings requirement 
referenced above, assuming of course new pressures do not emerge in 
remainder of the year.

22.Performance in delivery of the transformation plans will be tracked and 
reported monthly against the financial savings target set for each 
programmes and across a set of key performance metrics. Work is ongoing 
presently to update the savings targets for each project and finalise a 
detailed set of metrics in light of the current changes to Adult Social Care’s 
full year commitments. This will be completed by the end of February 2019.

3 For budget management purposes, transformational savings targets have been allocated across care groups.  
However, these savings will be delivered 

Page 24



Challenges to Implementation:

Potential Challenges and Mitigation to Implementing the Change

23. The significant challenge ahead, the scale, complexity and reliance on 
effectively managing internal and external dependencies cannot be 
underestimated. The key challenges and actions to mitigate against them are 
presented below:

a) It is essential for effective change to be delivered and have an impact in 
a timely manner in-year and early in 2019/20 in order to respond to 
future budget pressures and prevent the need to cut services.

b) There is a risk that external levels of demand may be higher than 
budgeted which would adversely impact on the Council’s financial 
position and ability to meet statutory duties which may in turn result in 
legal challenges with both financial and reputational consequences.  
This will closely be monitored and strategies and solutions implemented 
based on best practice, working alongside partners, such as the 
Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector.

c) The relative strength of providers given the large self-funding market in 
Surrey could mean we may not be able to influence prices to within our 
affordability caps or lack of interest in the market to work with the 
Council could lead to a lack of affordable provision. An improved 
understanding of the market, close engagement and collaboration with a 
wide range of housing providers forms our approach in developing the 
provision. In addition, the Council will learn good practice from other 
local authorities, for example, investment in change and capital has 
resulted in the average cost of supporting people delivers better 
outcomes and has the potential in future revenue streams from rentals 
etc.

d) Risk of provider failure or care homes exiting the market or impact to 
service quality and/or safeguarding.

e) The Council is embarking on a change in professional culture around an 
explicit new model of care. This will be challenging and take some time 
to fully embed amongst staff. In addition, the pressures on staff cannot 
be underestimated, it is essential staff are supported in learning new 
ways of working and workloads prioritised, vacancies appropriately filled 
with less reliance on unqualified staff.

f) There will be a reduction in choice as the Council’s offer to people and 
their families will focus on the services we have already procured or the 
services that the Council is able to commission at the most affordable 
prices.  This will mean the Council is not always able to offer people a 
care home placement in the borough or district where they live.

Page 25



g) The planned reduction in the number of people with a social care 
package funded by the Council could, at times, bring us into conflict with 
Health. The Council has worked hard to develop effective working 
relationships with health colleagues over a number of years.  
Collaboration, streamlining of service provision and integration of health 
and social care services where appropriate remain key priorities. Surrey 
has consistently performed well in areas such as avoiding delayed 
transfers of care for social care eligible patients. However, the focus on 
aspects such as avoiding assessments for people when they are in crisis 
could lead to challenges with Health partners. 

Conclusions:

24. The report outlines the direction and the anticipated impact and challenges of 
the Adult Social Care Transformation Programme and how the programmes 
will collectively deliver the required change to manage demand and meet 
outcomes, whilst managing within budget.

Recommendations:

It is recommended that the Adults and Lifelong Learning Select Committee notes 
and endorses the transformation programme currently underway in Adult Social 
Care. 

Next steps:

The next update on progress and delivery of the programmes to be presented to 
Adults and Lifelong Learning Select Committee on the 5 June 2019.
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Report contact:
Simon White
Interim Executive Director for Adult Social Care

Contact details:
Telephone: 020 8541 7743
Email: simon.white1@surreycc. gov.uk
 
Sources/background papers:

County Council Meeting 13 November 2018 – Item 9 – Annex 3, Full Business Case 
2021 – Pages 11,12, 15 and 30 
https://members.surreycc.gov.uk/documents/s51914/Item%209%20-
%20Annex%203%20Full%20Business%20Case%202021.pdf

County Council Meeting 5 February 2019 – Item 6 – Revenue and Capital Budget 
2019/20 to 2023/24 

Page 26

mailto:simon.white1@surreycc
https://members.surreycc.gov.uk/documents/s51914/Item%209%20-%20Annex%203%20Full%20Business%20Case%202021.pdf
https://members.surreycc.gov.uk/documents/s51914/Item%209%20-%20Annex%203%20Full%20Business%20Case%202021.pdf


https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=6656&Ver=
4 

Annexes:

Annex 1: Adult Social Care Financial Summary
Annex 2: Operational Process Epsom General Hospital Discharge to Assess

Page 27

https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=6656&Ver=4
https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=6656&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 1

Adult Social Care

Financial Summary

P
age 29



A very significant change in spending patterns is required 

to deliver the reduced budget envelope in 2019/20

P
age 30



On an in-year basis ASC is in a good position for 2018/19

ASC is set to significantly over achieve the £10.7m target underspend set 

for the service in 2018/19 as a contribution towards the £40m of in-year 

savings targeted for the County Council as a whole.

This also helps to deliver the reduced cash envelope in 2019/20, although 

it is important to note some of the underspend in 2018/19 is one-off.

P
age 31



90% of ASC’s gross budget is spent on supporting people 

and their carers so this is where the focus for savings 

needs to be 

These three 

categories 

represent £441m, 

90%, of the revised 

gross expenditure 

budget for 2018/19 

Care Group 2018/19 revised budget %

Older People (all care 65+) £205m 47%

Learning Disability (18-64) £167m 38%

Physical Disabilities (18-64) £45m 10%

Mental Health (18-64) £12m 3%

Carers and Housing Related Support £12m 3%

Total gross care expenditure £441m 100%

P
age 32



There are also positive signs that movements in spot care 

spending will help to achieve the £10.7m in-year savings 

in 2018/19 on an on-going basis

Spot care packages purchased with external providers account for three quarters of ASC’s gross 

expenditure.

Full year commitments for spot care packages reduced by £6.6m between August 2018 and 

December 2018 since new approaches to managing demand and cost of care pressures have been 

implemented.

As at the end of December 2018, full year commitments were still £2.2m higher than the revised 

2018/19 budget (i.e. incorporating spot care’s share of the £10.7m reduction).

However, higher levels of under-usage of home care and supported living packages and some other 

underspends this year have not yet been taken into account in the full year commitment figures.  

These will contribute to savings in 2019/20.  As such the end of December position indicates that the 

revised 2018/19 budget will be achieved on an ongoing basis.

P
age 33



Volumes and average costs are reducing and / or are 

significantly below the original budgeted profile for 

2018/19.  This trend will need to continue into 2019/20

Older People Nursing Care

P
age 34



Older People Home Care

P
age 35



Learning Disabilities 18-64 Residential Care

* ASC is currently in the process of implementing a new pricing structure for Leering Disability 

residential and supported living care services including fee uplifts backdated to April 2017.  It 

will not be possible to accurately assess current average costs until the new pricing structure 

has been implemented and packages uplifted to the new rates in ASC’s finance system.  This 

work is ongoing, the majority should be completed by year end.

P
age 36



Learning Disabilities 18-64 Supported Living

* ASC is currently in the process of implementing a new pricing structure for Leering Disability 

residential and supported living care services including fee uplifts backdated to April 2017.  It 

will not be possible to accurately assess current average costs until the new pricing structure 

has been implemented and packages uplifted to the new rates in ASC’s finance system.  This 

work is ongoing, the majority should be completed by year end.

P
age 37



This requires:

• the £10.7m in year savings in 2018/19 to be delivered on an on-going basis

• budget pressures (excluding Grant Changes) to be managed within the £14.8m allowed for cost of 

care increases, demand, pay inflation and the impact of the end of ASC’s biggest block contract

• £20m of cost reduction savings to be delivered, most of which are reliant on successful 

implementation of the ASC’s transformation programmes

The 2019/20 budget plans for net expenditure to be £17m less than 

the original budget set for 2018/19, although this would still 

represent growth over two years of £6m (2%) compared to actual net 

spending in 2017/18

P
age 38



Out of £20.1m savings required for 2019/20, £5.5m of 

savings are Red, £9.8m are Amber and £4.8m are Green

Saving title G A R
Total 

target

Older People / Physical Disabilities savings £1.1m £5.9m £0.6m £7.6m

Learning Disabilities 25+ savings £2.5m £1.5m £4.5m £8.5m

Transition 18-24 savings £1.3m £1.3m

Mental Health savings £0.4m £0.4m

Total transformation savings £3.6m £8.7m £5.5m £17.8m

Increased fees & charges income £0.4m £0.4m

Resolution of significant outstanding Continuing

Health Care disputed cases
£0.8m £0.8m

Surrey Choices efficiencies £0.3m £0.3m

Completion of Housing related support savings £0.2m £0.2m

Completion of closure of Surrey Information Hubs £0.1m £0.1m

Wider contracts and grants savings £0.5m £0.5m

Total business as usual savings £1.2m £1.1m £0.0m £2.3m

TOTAL 2019/20 SAVINGS £4.8m £9.8m £5.5m £20.1m

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Annex 2

OPERATIONAL PROCESS Epsom General Hospital Discharge to Assess

Adult Social Care Practitioner to;

 Open shell of Assessment on LAS.
 Complete Support Plan and funding 

checklist clearly marked D2A 2018
 Arrange up to 24HR daily Care.
 Update D2A Spread sheet

 Send D2A letter

Occupational Therapist urgent functional 
assessment, order equipment and 

telecare and confirm date of delivery

Client medically fit and clinically optimised

Multi-Disciplinary team recommending permanent 
placement.

Refer for Continuing Health Care Checklist

Positive Checklist Refer to Discharge Team 
for full DST or for CHC D2A

Negative Checklist

Discharge to assess to be agreed with 
team manager

Person identified as suitable for Discharge to 
Assess

Date of discharge confirmed.  Ward to 
order TTO’s and book transport

Full Assessment of Need completed with 
individual in their home within 7 working 

days of discharge  

Referral for Financial Assessment on 
completion of Adult Social Care 

Assessment 

Individual transitioned to long term care 
package or placement if required within 4 

weeks of discharge

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Adults and Lifelong Learning Select Committee
13 February 2019
Recommendations Tracker and Forward Work Programme

Purpose of report:

For Members to review and comment on the Adults and Lifelong Learning Select 
Committee’s Recommendations Tracker and Forward Work Programme.

Introduction:

A Recommendations Tracker detailing progress against actions and 
recommendations recorded at previous Adults and Lifelong Learning Select 
Committee meetings is attached as Annex 1 to this report

A Forward Work Programme recording agenda items for consideration at future 
Adults and Lifelong Learning Select Committee meetings is attached as Annex 2, 
and Members are asked to review the items listed on the Forward Work Programme.

Recommendations:

That the Adults and Lifelong Learning Select Committee:

i. reviews progress made against actions and recommendations recorded at 
previous Select Committee meetings (Annex 2); and

ii. reviews items that it is due to consider at future meetings (Annex 1)

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Report contact: Ross Pike, Committees Business Manager

Contact details: 020 8541 7368, ross.pike@surreycc.gov.uk

Annexes:

Annex 1 – Adults and Lifelong Learning Select Committee Recommendations Tracker

Annex 2 – Adults and Lifelong Learning Select Committee Forward Work Programme

Annex 3 – Response to Recommendation R4/18

Annex 4 – Response to Recommendation R5/18

Page 43

Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 1 – Recommendations Tracker

ADULTS AND LIFELONG LEARNING SELECT COMMITTEE 
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER – FEBRUARY 2018

The recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their 
recommendations or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each Board. Once an action has been 
completed, it will be shaded out to indicate that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting. The next progress check will 
highlight to members where actions have not been dealt with.

KEY No Progress Reported Action in Progress Action Completed

Date of 
meeting

Ref # Item Recommendations/ Actions To Response Progress 
Check on

11 October 
2018

R1/18 Surrey County 
Council 

Apprenticeship 
Strategy

The Select Committee recommends that 
the Council produces an Action Plan 

outlining specific steps that the Council will 
take to improve retention of qualified 

apprentices, enhance the perception of 
apprenticeships among residents and 

partners and embed higher apprenticeship 
Level standards across the Council.

Joy Hurman, 
Lead 

Consultant – 
Learning & 

Development

A review of the 
Council’s 

Apprenticeship 
Strategy is 

underway. Officers 
are exploring how 
the Council can 

maximise benefits 
arising from the 

Apprenticeship Levy. 
This review has 
supplanted the 

Action Plan. With the 
Chairman’s 

agreement, the 
Apprenticeship 

Strategy will now be 
brought to the Select 
Committee meeting 

on 3 June 2019 

P
age 45



Annex 1 – Recommendations Tracker

11 October 
2018

R2/18 Surrey County 
Council 

Apprenticeship 
Strategy

The Select Committee recommends that 
the Apprenticeship Task Force submits its 

Action Plan to the Committee for 
consideration at its meeting on 13 February 
2019 including an update on those specific 
areas identified in recommendation R1/18.

Andy Baird, 
Democratic 

Services 
Officer

The Apprenticeship 
Strategy will now be 
considered by the 

Select Committee at 
its meeting on 3 June 

2019
11 October 

2018
R3/18 Surrey County 

Council 
Apprenticeship 

Strategy

recommends that the Cabinet Member 
writes to the Minister of State for School 

Standards to encourage Ofsted to include 
apprenticeships within their measures of 

success for assessing school performance.

Mary Lewis, 
Cabinet 

Member for 
All-Age 

Learning

A response from the 
Minister of State for 
Apprenticeships and 

Skills has been 
received and 

circulated to the 
Committee

11 October 
2018

R4/18 Adult Social 
Care Strategic 

Priorities: 
Workforce

The Select Committee recommends that 
the Council creates an Action Plan for 

improving recruitment of young people into 
the adult social care workforce by 

challenging poor perceptions of care work 
among young people and their parents, 

increasing opportunities for work 
experience and using social media more 

effectively as a recruitment tool.

Sonya 
Sellar, Area 

Director, 
Adult Social 

Care

11 October 
2018

R5/18 Adult Social 
Care Strategic 

Priorities: 
Workforce

recommends that the Health and Wellbeing 
Board reviews opportunities to establish 
clear career pathways between frontline 

care roles within the Council, NHS England 
and partner organisations as a matter of 

urgency and submits the outcomes of this 
review to the Select Committee ahead of its 

meeting on 13 February 2019

Amy 
Morgan, 

Policy and 
Programme 
Manager, 

Health and 
Social Care 
Integration

A letter from the Co-
Chairs of the Health 
& Wellbeing Board in 

response to this 
recommendation was 

circulated to the 
Select Committee on 

31 January 2019

11 October 
2018

R6/18 Adult Social 
Care Strategic 

Priorities: 
Workforce

recommends that the Council prioritises 
investigating the potential of technology to 
support the workforce, improve productivity 

Sonya 
Sellar, Area 

Director, 

P
age 46



Annex 1 – Recommendations Tracker

and promote residents to remain 
independent

Adult Social 
Care

11 October 
2018

R7/18 Adult Social 
Care Strategic 

Priorities: 
Workforce

recommends that the Council undertakes 
an exercise to consider the cost of 

recruitment against raising staff salaries

Sonya 
Sellar, Area 

Director, 
Adult Social 

Care

P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



www.surreycc.gov.uk

Select Committee
Forward Work Programmes

2018/2019

Annex 2 – Forward Work Programme

Adults and Lifelong Learning Select Committee (Chairman: Jeff Harris, Democratic Services Officer: Andy Baird)

Date of 
Meeting

Scrutiny Topic Description Outcome Method

5 June 2019 Surrey County 
Council 
Apprenticeship 

Members will review Surrey 
County Council’s refreshed 
Apprenticeship Strategy in light of 
comments and recommendations 
made by the Select Committee at 
its meeting on 11 October 2018.

Members will be given the opportunity to review 
the Strategy in detail to understand how it will 
support the Council to improve its use of 
Apprentices.

Officer report to 
Committee

P
age 49



5 June 2019 Safeguarding Adults Ensuring the safety of vulnerable 
adults in Surrey is a key priority 
for the Council and its partner 
organisations. The Council has a 
duty to ensure that it has 
appropriate arrangements in 
place to ensure that it protects 
and safeguards the population.

The Committee will examine how 
the Council and its partners 
deliver of their responsibilities to 
safeguard vulnerable adults in 
Surrey.  

The Committee will understand how the Council 
performs against its duty to safeguard vulnerable 
residents, how it embeds learning from 
safeguarding incidents, how officers keep ahead of 
potential safeguarding challenges and how 
safeguarding is embedded as part of Council 
policies and training.

Members will also hear from officers regarding the 
impact of potential new legislation on Deprivation 
of Liberties Safeguards and options for the Council 
in responding to this legislation.

This item will involve contributions from both the 
Surrey Safeguarding Adults Board and the Health 
and Wellbeing Board.

Officer Report 
to Committee

5 June 2019 Adult Social Care 
Debt

The Select Committee has 
identified the reduction of debt 
owed to the Council for the 
provision of Adult Social Care 
services as a key priority for the 
Council. 

The Adult Social Care Directorate 
has introduced new processes to 
improve how it handles and 
follows up on debt which the 
Committee will review alongside 
information on the Council’s 
current debt position.  

The Committee will gain an understanding of how 
the Council manages debt owed to it by residents 
for the provision of adult social care services and 
gain an insight into whether new initiatives 
introduced to expedite debt recovery have been 
successful.

Items to be scheduled

P
age 50



Date of 
Meeting

Scrutiny Topic Description Outcome 
Method

TBD Preventing 
Homelessness

The Committee will consider how 
public sector organisations in 
Surrey are working together in 
order to prevent and alleviate 
homelessness in response to the 
requirements of the 
Homelessness Reduction Act 
and to ensure that those at risk of 
homelessness experience better 
outcomes.

The Committee will develop an understanding of 
the risk factors that cause homelessness and build 
a picture of the journey that leads to homelessness 
for individuals and households. The Committee will 
then consider these in light of approaches to 
preventing homelessness that have been 
implemented across Surrey following introduction 
of the Homelessness Reduction Bill 

The Committee will also seek to raise awareness 
around the issue of homelessness and the 
damage that it does to individuals, families and 
communities.

Witness 
sessions

Workshop

Site visit 
(Leatherhead 
night hospital, 
Guildford 
Hostel)

TBD Implications of the 
Adult Social Care 
Green Paper

The Government has committed 
to publishing a green paper in 
Autumn 2018 outlining how it 
proposes to improve care and 
support for older people and 
tackle the challenge of an ageing 
population. The outcomes of the 
Green Paper could have 
significant implications for the 
provision of adult social care 
impacting on how these services 
are funded and delivered in the 
future. This item will look at the 
implications of the green paper 
on the delivery of adult social 
care services in Surrey. 

For the Committee to understand the impacts of 
the Green Paper on the delivery of adult social 
care services in Surrey and steps that the Council 
intends to take in order to respond to the proposals 
outlined within the Green Paper.

Workshop/ 
informal 
learning 
session

P
age 51



TBD All-Age Learning 
Strategy

Item to be scoped.

Task and Finish Groups

Date of 
Meeting

Scrutiny Topic Description Outcome 
Method

TBD Libraries Strategy The Council is planning to 
undertake a comprehensive 
review of its library strategy over 
the coming months to consider 
how they can support a wider 
range of culture and learning 
opportunities for residents.

The Committee will consider how 
Surrey’s library network will look 
in the future and support SCC in 
understanding how these 
community assets can deliver the 
right skills and learning 
opportunities.

The Committee will contribute to the production of 
the Library Strategy while it is being developed to 
understand the options being considered and 
ensuring that the expertise of Members are 
engaged in producing the strategy. The Committee 
will aim to ensure that its views are incorporated 
into the strategy as it is being developed but may 
make recommendations to officers regarding the 
implementation of the strategy. 

Task and 
Finish Group

P
age 52



Annex 3 – Response to Recommendation R4/18

1

Adult Social Care – Workforce Action Plan
Strategic Objective Action Action Owners Deadline

1.

1

The Select Committee 
recommends that the Council 
creates an Action Plan for 
improving recruitment of young 
people into the adult social care 
workforce by challenging poor 
perceptions of care work among 
young people and their parents, 
increasing opportunities for 
work experience and using 
social media more effectively as 
a recruitment tool.

   Challenge Poor 
Perceptions of Adult 
Social Care among 
young people and 
their parents

Increase 
opportunities for 
Work Experience 

 Challenge Poor Perceptions of Adult Social Care among 
young people and their parents

 A program of attendance at Career events 
in partnership with NHS colleagues that are 
targeted towards young people & their 
parents. This includes schools and colleges

  Identify and develop from the existing 
workforce social media ambassadors. The 
aim will be for them to share their positive 
experience of work in Social Care via social 
media  

   Active engagement with the national DoH 
recruitment campaign. Sharing Surrey case 
studies and videos. Engaging with DWP 
website

-  
Increase opportunities for Work Experience 

 Introduce structured work experience 
program

 Recruitment campaign for  new 
apprenticeship roles 

 Continue to work with Health Education 
Kent Surrey & Sussex (HEKSS) to identify 
and support potential candidates to reapply 
and/or to promote roles within the sector 
that are more suited to their skills and 
aspirations. 

Adult Social Care 
(ASC) workforce 
team

ASC workforce 
team

Surrey Care 
Association/ASC 
workforce team

ASC workforce 
team

ASC workforce 
team

ASC workforce 
team/HEKSS

Ongoing 
program in 
place

April 2019

February  2019

June  2019

April 2019 

Ongoing 
program in 
place

P
age 53



Annex 3 – Response to Recommendation R4/18

2

Use Social Media 
effectively as  
recruitment tool

Use Social Media effectively as  recruitment tool
 Increase presence & improve content on social 

media that focuses on attracting younger 
people into Adult Social Care. Including 
promotion of apprenticeship opportunities and 
work experience on linked in. 

  Targeted Social Media campaign to promote 
opportunities in Learning Disability team  

  Use I Care Ambassadors and Social Media 
Ambassadors to post videos and updates on 
linked in and  facebook  to tell their story of 
working in Surrey in order to attract new and 
younger people into adult care careers

 Continue to offer a register your interest 
process for qualified posts. 

 Continue with recruitment approach that is 
more engaging with younger people, this 
includes running  more assessment centres that 
providing a recruitment process that is 
millennial friendly

ASC workforce 
team

ASC workforce 
team

ASC workforce 
team

ASC  workforce 
team

ASC workforce 
team

Ongoing 
program in 
place

April 2019

June 2019

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

1.

2

Recommends that the Health 
and Wellbeing Board reviews 
opportunities to establish clear 
career pathways between 
frontline care roles within the 
Council, NHS England and 
partner organisations as a 
matter of urgency and submits 
the outcomes of this review to 

Health & Wellbeing 
Board to consider 
the recommendation 
made by the ALL 
committee

Chair or the Health and Wellbeing Board has provided a 
written response to this recommendation

Initiatives currently in place:- 

 Joint approach in place with Surrey NHS 
partners and HEKSS to develop pool of 
candidates for health and social care roles (see 
section 1 above)

Health and 
Wellbeing Board 

Adult Social Care  
workforce 
team/NHS partners 
/HEKSS

11th January 
2019

Ongoing 
program in 
place

P
age 54



Annex 3 – Response to Recommendation R4/18

3

the Select Committee ahead of 
its meeting on 13 February 2019

 Joint career events with NHS have been 
undertaken in 2018, based in Acute Hospitals.  
Planning events for 2019 

 Joint initiatives on workforce being progressed 
via Surrey Heartlands ICS/ Frimley ICS and East 
Surrey STP. Examples include:-
 Surrey Heartlands workforce action board 

(SHWAB),  developing joint workforce 
strategy, Submit to SHWAB  by March 2019

 Frimley Integrated Care System (ICS) 
developed joint role with reablement and 
NHS roles

ASC  workforce 
team/NHS partners 
/Surrey Care 
Association

Surrey 
Heartlands/SHWAB

Frimley ICS

Ongoing 
program in 
place

March 2019

Ongoing 

2.

3

Recommends that the Council 
prioritises investigating the 
potential of technology to 
support the workforce, improve 
productivity and promote 
residents to remain 
independent

Investigate the 
potential of 
technology to support 
the workforce, 
improve productivity 
and promote 
residents to remain 
independent

 Launch Mobile LAS app on hybrid device to 
allow staff to input real time data. The hybrid 
devices are currently being tested. Subject to a 
procurement process, the chosen device will be 
rolled out in April.

 Expansion of the Citizen portal (already live 
enabling self-assessment) into a Client portal 
that allows resident to self-review and receive 
bespoke signposting information. The scope 
and potential for greater self-service needs to 
be explored.

 Promotion of the Online Financial Assessment 
Portal as the default option for improving 
timeliness of assessments.

 Use of automated processes to replace manual 
processes for example, the automated archiving 
of electronic records. Business case for 

Liquid Logic, Adult 
Social Care 
Business systems 
Team

Liquid Logic, Adult 
Social Care 
Business systems 
Team

Liquid Logic, Adult 
Social Care 
Business systems 
Team

April 2019

April 19

April 2019

P
age 55



Annex 3 – Response to Recommendation R4/18

4

resources to be  drafted Feb 19 and plan to go 
live for April 19

 A new delegation portal to create efficiencies 
for our Deprivation of Liberty (DOLs) team.

 Portal upgrade incorporating ‘short cuts’ that 
will save staff time (increase productivity)
Scheduled for April/May 2019

 Electronic professional referral that directly 
feeds LAS – removing need for staff to enter 
initial contact data into LAS and scan and 
upload documents to Wisdom and to.  In 
development to be soft launched end of March 
prior to full roll out in June.

 Work with the Agile Workforce transformation 
programme to ensure staff have the right 
equipment to support their role.

 Explore the options for an expanded 
Technology Enabled Care offer to use 
technology to help people remain independent 
in their own homes.

Liquid Logic, Adult 
Social Care 
Business systems 
Team

Liquid Logic, Adult 
Social Care 
Business systems 
Team

Liquid Logic, Adult 
Social Care 
Business systems 
Team

Liquid Logic, Adult 
Social Care 
Business systems 
Team

May 2019

June 2019

Ongoing

Ongoing

3.
4

Recommends that the Council 
undertakes an exercise to 
consider the cost of recruitment 
against raising staff salaries

Evaluate the cost of 
recruitment against 
raising staff salaries

 Seek feedback from ADASS regional partners if 
they have done this and if so what the impact 
was  

 Undertake evaluation of cost of recruitment & 
retention incentives 

Adult Social Care 
workforce lead

Adult Social Care 
workforce team

December 2019

February 2019

P
age 56



Annex 4 – Response to Recommendation R5/18
 

C/O Amy Morgan
Surrey County Council

Room G33
County Hall

KT1 2DN
020 8213 2838 

amy.morgan@surreycc.gov.uk

Adults and Lifelong Learning Select Committee
Surrey County Council
Room G33
County Hall
KT1 2DN

11 January 2019

Dear Cllr Jeffrey Harris,

Following the Adults and Lifelong Learning Select Committee meeting on 11th October, we 
are writing to you regarding the recommendation that the Health and Wellbeing Board 
provide the Committee with further detail on action being taken to integrate the health and 
social care workforce.

At the moment, workforce development and planning across health and social care is 
primarily happening through the Integrated Care Systems (ICS) / Sustainability and 
Transformation Partnerships (STP) rather than as a direct work programme of the Health 
and Wellbeing Board.

That said, we know there is considerable activity taking place across Surrey to respond to 
the workforce challenges the system faces and to support the integration of our health and 
care workforce. Challenges and workforce pressures - such as high staff turnover, an ageing 
workforce and reduction in EU workers - are shared across the system.

An example of this joint working is the collaboration taking place in all areas of Surrey 
between health and care partners to develop and deliver local integrated teams to provide 
increasingly seamless care to older adults, and community-based care and support to 
prevent admission to hospital and support hospital discharge. In addition, joint recruitment 
and career events have been held across health and social care.

Each of the three ICS / STPs in Surrey will be able to provide the Committee with further 
detail on the approaches being taken to integrate the health and care workforce in their 
respective areas if required (contact details for each of these can be provided).

Looking ahead, we are sure the Committee will be pleased to hear the Health and Wellbeing 
Board is currently drafting a new 10 year health and wellbeing strategy to provide the system 
with a clear vision of where it wants to go and what we want to achieve for residents. The 
strategy will include ‘workforce’ as a key enabler ensuring the Health and Wellbeing Board 

Page 57

mailto:amy.morgan@surreycc.gov.uk


Annex 4 – Response to Recommendation R5/18
 

takes a stronger role in overseeing the work being done to tackle our shared workforce 
challenges. The new Health and Wellbeing Strategy will is due to be finalised and approved 
in April 2019.

Kind regards,

                 

Tim Oliver Dr Elango Vijaykumar
Chair Deputy Chair
Surrey Health & Wellbeing Board Surrey Health & Wellbeing Board

Page 58


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting: 11 October 2018
	6 Adult Social Care Transformation Programme
	Item 6 - Annex 1 - ASC Financial Summary
	item 6 - Annex 2 - Operational Process

	7 Recommendations Tracker and Forward Work Programme
	Item 7 - Annex 1 - Recommendations Tracker
	Item 7 - Annex 2 - Forward Work Programme
	Item 7 - Annex 3 - Response to recommendation R4-18
	Item 7 - Annex 4 - Response to Recommendation R5-18


